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Responses to Questions on Public University Research Grant Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Note: In some instances, identifying and research project proposed subject matter information have been redacted. 

 

 Questions Answers 
1.  What is the earliest start date? Applicants selected to receive funding will be notified on November 6, 

2020, at which time the Bureau will start the process to enter into the 
requisite agreement for authorizing payment of grant funds. Grant funds 
will only be distributed after the agreement for grant funds has been 
executed. The time period of when the funds must be used is determined 
starting from the distribution date of the awarded funds. 

2.  Do Sections 2, 3 and 4. (Budget, 
Experience and project Personnel, 
and Resources) count as part of the 4 
page proposal? If not, should these be 
updated in the same file as the 4 page 
proposal? Or as separate files? 

The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs.  

3.  Does the budget allow for 
Overhead/Indirect Costs?  Our 
university currently has an approved 
DHHS F&A Rate agreement.  If the 
proposal allows Overhead/Indirect 
Cost, can we use our approved DHHS 
F&A rate agreement or does the 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
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Bureau of Cannabis Control has a 
specific Overhead rate to use? 

evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

 

4.  For the project period of the 2-year 
grant, what should we use for the start 
date? The grant award notification is 
announced on November 6, 
2020.  Will the grant start date be 
December 1,2020 or some other 
date.   

Applicants selected to receive funding will be notified on November 6, 
2020, at which time the Bureau will start the process to enter into the 
requisite agreement for authorizing payment of grant funds. Grant funds 
will only be distributed after the agreement for grant funds has been 
executed. The time period of when the funds must be used is determined 
starting from the distribution date of the awarded funds. 

5.  What is the maximum allowable 
indirect cost rate for this grant? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

6.  Is there a page limit for CVs? The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs.  

7.  Are letters of support allowed / 
recommended? 

The applicant may provide any information or materials that they feel is 
appropriate in meeting the requirements for the Scope of Proposal.  
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8.  What is the expected start date? 

January 1, 2021? 
Applicants selected to receive funding will be notified on November 6, 
2020, at which time the Bureau will start the process to enter into the 
requisite agreement for authorizing payment of grant funds. Grant funds 
will only be distributed after the agreement for grant funds has been 
executed. The time period of when the funds must be used is determined 
starting from the distribution date of the awarded funds. 

9.  Can a project go over two years if it is 
well justified? 

 

Recipients selected for funding must utilize funds within two years from 
date of distribution of the awarded funds, unless otherwise authorized by 
the Bureau. The Bureau may approve a research project to exceed 2 
years. 

10.  Can an application be submitted with 
co-PIs at other institutions? Is there 
any limitation? For example, are co-
PIs allowed from private institutions 
and / or out of state?  

Grant funding is only available to public universities in California. The 
proposal should include any partners or other collaborators. There are no 
specific requirements for partners or other collaborators. However, as 
indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding selection if 
they are a public university in California and recipients shall not 
subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant funds 
awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, without 
prior written consent of the Bureau. 

11.  My faculty would like me to verify my 
understanding that the Sponsored 
Programs Office is the “applicant” and 
that faculty can submit more than one 
separate research proposals through 
us. 

A public university is the applicant and may only submit one proposal for 
a given research project. Applicants may submit more than one proposal 
if the proposals are for separate and distinct research projects or 
activities. 

12.  My faculty would also like me to verify 
my understanding that we may 
receive multiple awards, but that 
EACH award cannot exceed $2 
million. Theoretically we could, if we 

A public university may be awarded a grant for multiple research projects 
but will not be awarded more than two million dollars for each individual 
research project. 
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received more than one award, 
receive more than $2 million from this 
call. 

13.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Bureau of Cannabis Control 
Accepting Public University Research 
Grant Applications – question 
regarding identified funding area” 
[Redacted]. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

14.  Would a [redacted] Federally Funded 
Research and Development Center 
(FFRDC), which is under the [the 
management of a university] be 
eligible to apply for this RFP? 

An applicant is eligible for grant funding selection if they are a public 
university in California. The Bureau is unable to provide a determination 
regarding eligibility of the applicant prior to submission and scoring. 

However, the applicant must be able to affirmatively establish that the 
applicant is a public university to be awarded funding.  

15.  Are institutional overhead costs 
allowed to be included as a part of the 
budget? Does the overall total budget 
cap allowed include both direct and 
indirect costs? For institutional 
overhead costs, is there a max 
percentage or fixed rate allowance? 
Are expenses such as graduate 
student fees, technology infrastructure 
fees (TIF) and university related fees 
allowable to include in the budget or 
are there any exclusions?  

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

 



Bureau Responses to Questions on Public University Research Grant RFP   Page 5 of 43 

 Questions Answers 
16.  Are there any format or page limit 

requirements for the curriculum vitae 
and would a National Institutes of 
Health biosketch be acceptable? 

The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs. The RFP requires 
submission of CVs and a biosketch would not meet this requirement.  

17.  Are reference/bibliography required 
and if so, are they to be included in 
the 4-page limit? 

The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs. 
Reference/bibliography are not required. 

18.  With regards to describing related 
research projects conducted by our 
university, are there specific 
information that must be included in 
this section and would this list be 
included within the 4-page limit? 

The applicant may provide any information or material that they feel is 
appropriate in meeting the requirements for the Scope of Proposal. The 
Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs.  

19.  Does the award include indirect funds 
for the host institution?  

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  
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20.  (Question Relating to Possible 

Area/Topic of Research) 

“Cannabis grant inquiry” [Redacted]. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

21.  Are applicants allowed to include 
subcontracts in their budget 
applications? If approval is required, 
how can an applicant secure approval 
from the Bureau?  

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget items must be 
included in the proposal. The proposal must describe how the grant 
funds will be expended in detail and include all items that will be funded 
by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities the grants 
funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be evaluated in 
conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable outcomes of 
the project. The Bureau is unable to provide an approval regarding a 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

22.  Will the BCC consider grants using 
(federally compliant) controlled drug 
administration procedures in 
volunteers to address the public 
health priority areas (i.e., impact of 
cannabis potency on health 
outcomes)? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. The Bureau 
is unable to provide an approval regarding a proposed project prior to 
submission and scoring.   

23.  Is the BCC interested in preclinical 
(animal) studies that respond to the 
public health priority areas? 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring. 
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24.  Please confirm whether F&A will be 

inclusive of the $2 million or will it be 
in addition to this amount.  

No public university will be awarded a total of more than two million 
dollars for an individual research project for all costs 

25.  Are researchers at [Redacted] a U.S. 
Department of Energy National 
Laboratory managed by [a university] 
eligible to apply for these grants? 

An applicant is eligible for grant funding selection if they are a public 
university in California. The Bureau is unable to provide a determination 
regarding eligibility of the applicant prior to submission and scoring. 
However, the applicant must be able to affirmatively establish that the 
applicant is a public university to be awarded funding.  

26.  There was no mention in the RFP that 
indirect costs were not allowable. 
[Redacted]. As we are working on the 
application it is our intention to include 
that in our proposed budget. Please 
confirm that this correct in regard to 
this funding opportunity. 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

27.  Would this grant application also be 
extended to non-university, Nonprofit 
research organization? [Redacted] 

An applicant is eligible for grant funding selection if they are a public 
university in California. The Bureau is unable to provide a determination 
regarding eligibility of the applicant prior to submission and scoring.   

28.  I'm a 5th yr PhD student at the 
[Redacted] I believe the findings are 
critical to zoning and policy feedback 
and implementation. However, the 
grant prospectus stated that it was 
only for public universities in 
California. Could an exemption 
possibly be made?  

An applicant is eligible for grant funding selection if they are a public 
university in California. California and Revenue Taxation Code section 
34019, subdivision (b), provides that such funding is available to public 
universities in California, and does not provide an exemption for such 
eligibility.  
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29.  I didn’t find any information regarding 

indirect costs in the RFP or online and 
I want to confirm that indirect costs 
are allowable to include in the 
proposed budget.  

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

30.  Name of Public University Applicant. 
Just to confirm, that would be the 
name of the university, not the person 
leading the proposed research project, 
correct? 

The applicant should be the public university as an applicant is only 
eligible for grant funding selection if they are a public university in 
California.  

31.  Person Submitting Application. Just to 
confirm, this should be the Principal 
Investigator, i.e. the person who will 
lead the research project, not the 
person in our office of contracts and 
grants administration that would 
literally be submitting the application, 
correct? 

 

The RFP does not specify the individual that is required to submit the 
proposal application on behalf of the applicant. The individual submitting 
the application for the applicant must have the authority to submit the 
application on behalf of the applicant, must attest to the truth and 
accuracy of the information provided, and must provide reasonable 
assurance that the funding will be used in accordance with the 
application if selected for funding.  

32.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Public University Research Grant 
questions” – [Redacted]. 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
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the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

33.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Public University Research Grant 
questions” [Redacted]. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

34.  What are the page limits for various 
sections. I see Scope of project is 4 
pages. How about other sections? For 
example, Budget justification pages 
describing how the funds will be used, 
project personnel, and resources etc. 

The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs.  

35.  Is there a place to submit Curriculum 
Vitae/qualifications of personnel? or 
we describe these qualifications sin 
[sic] the scope of proposal section?  

The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs.  

36.  What is the maximum budget allowed 
under one project? 

An applicant will not be awarded more than two million dollars for each 
individual research project. 

37.  Could you please let me know if 
indirect costs are allowed, and if so, if 
there are any restrictions? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
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evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

38.  I am wondering if the Bureau will 
deem research that uses laboratory 
animal models, or other laboratory 
investigations, responsive to the RFP? 
The language under Public Health 
Research is not explicit on this topic 
and there are certainly many studies 
that would enhance understanding of 
the risks of cannabis potency, 
influences on the use of alcohol and 
other drugs, and potentially the 
effectiveness of pharmacotherapies. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

39.  Can you advise whether applicants for 
the this funding opportunity may 
include sub awards with institutions 
that are not publicly-funded California 
universities?  We are considering 
submitting a project along with a 
collaborator from [Redacted] and the 
RFP does not seem to indicate 
whether this is permissible or not.   

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

All budget items must be included in the proposal. The proposal must 
describe how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all 
items that will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address 
what activities the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. 
This will be evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and 
measurable outcomes of the project. The Bureau is unable to provide an 
approval regarding a proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__bcc.ca.gov_about-5Fus_documents_rfp_rfp-5Frequest-5Ffor-5Fproposals.pdf&d=DwMFAg&c=LHIwbLRMLqgNuqr1uGLfTA&r=o-38Wyi4FQ6pDx7x3EUiYaEFzu4kEQ8cTxB-kJyQi2o&m=7xPfklwTfuAO72J4O-lORjeJqB_HRYlcgHftHFNa14c&s=Sfpfjt6OnvsSM1Kg4ekLUHrpJ96QmTVttJzARQUo3xc&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__bcc.ca.gov_about-5Fus_documents_rfp_rfp-5Frequest-5Ffor-5Fproposals.pdf&d=DwMFAg&c=LHIwbLRMLqgNuqr1uGLfTA&r=o-38Wyi4FQ6pDx7x3EUiYaEFzu4kEQ8cTxB-kJyQi2o&m=7xPfklwTfuAO72J4O-lORjeJqB_HRYlcgHftHFNa14c&s=Sfpfjt6OnvsSM1Kg4ekLUHrpJ96QmTVttJzARQUo3xc&e=
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40.  First, does the maximum figure of $2 

M requested include indirect costs, 
and if so, what is the rate?  

No public university will be awarded a total of more than two million 
dollars for an individual research project for all costs. The Bureau will 
evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in 
the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget items must be 
included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition related to 
indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe how the 
grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that will be 
funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities the 
grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

41.  Second, could you please clarify 
whether the project described in this 
abstract would be within the public 
health scope of the grant, or does it 
need to include investigations into 
potency levels as was mentioned in 
an example online? 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

42.  Is there a limit on the percentage of 
the total budget that can be 
subcontracted? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

43.  Is the $2M budget limit is meant to be 
direct or total costs, and if there are 
indirect cost coverage allowed, what is 
the percentage? 

No public university will be awarded a total of more than two million 
dollars for an individual research project for all costs. The Bureau will 
evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in 
the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget items must be 
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included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition related to 
indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe how the 
grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that will be 
funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities the 
grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

44.  The Prop 64 funding under this CA 
Bureau of Cannabis Control RFP for 
Public University Research Grants is 
CA State funds (i.e there is no federal 
funding associated to this RFP). 
[Please Confirm]. 

For further guidance, please see California Revenue and Taxation Code 
sections 34018 and 34019, pertaining to the Tax Fund for disbursement 
of research funds. Applicants should be aware of other restrictions or 
conditions related to funding from other sources that may be impacted by 
funding from this RFP. 

45.  There is no restriction on Indirect 
Costs as long as we provide within the 
application the documentation for the 
overhead rate included in our 
projected budget. [Please Confirm]. 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

46.  We are thinking about responding to 
the RFP with at least one scientific 
proposal in one of these two focus 
areas: [Redacted]. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

47.  First, would you please clarify whether 
we are allowed to include subawards 
in the proposal? Second, would you 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
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please clarify what indirect cost rate 
our budget should include?  Are we 
allowed to use our Federally 
Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate or do 
we need to use a California state 
negotiated rate? 

funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget items must be 
included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition related to 
indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe how the 
grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that will be 
funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities the 
grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project. 

48.  I am seeking clarification on the limit 
of one proposal per applicant. Are 
there specific requirements that 
indicate whether a research project is 
distinct? May [Redacted] submit 
multiple proposals with different 
project leads. 

A public university is the applicant and may only submit one proposal for 
a given research project. Applicants may submit more than one proposal 
if the proposals are for separate and distinct research projects or 
activities. 

49.  My colleague, a recent graduate from 
[Redacted], and I are planning to 
apply. I’m wondering if we can be 
listed as multiple PIs on the grant 
application (even though his current 
position is at [Redacted]? The grant 
would come through [Redacted] and I 
would be listed as the contact PI. 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

50.  Are subcontracts allowed as part of 
this granting process? I have partners 
at [Redacted] We have ongoing 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
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projects related to cannabis in 
California, [Redacted]. If we submitted 
a grant proposal [Redacted], (my 
current institution) was a 
subcontractor, would that be 
acceptable for this RFP? If so, are 
there any special steps we should 
take? 

funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

51.  Are scientists from [Redacted] 
National Laboratory eligible to serve 
as PI of projects, and/or to be sub-
contractors in projects led by a public 
California University? [Redacted]. The 
Laboratory is managed by the 
University of California. 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. However, the applicant must 
be able to affirmatively establish that the applicant. 

 

52.  [Redacted]. I am hoping you can 
provide clarification on conditions 
under which the Bureau may consider 
requests for subcontracts and/or 
equipment in the budget. Is there a 
way to receive pre-approval for 
subcontracts and/or equipment before 
grant submission? If not, if we were to 
include a subcontract and/or 
equipment request to support 
research activities in our proposal, is 
there a process for revising our 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. The Bureau is unable to 
provide an approval regarding a proposed project prior to submission 
and scoring. Once the application has been submitted it cannot be 
altered or changed.   
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budget and scope of work if those 
items are not approved? 

53.  Does your agency limit Facilities and 
Administrative Costs (F&A)/Indirect 
Costs or should our institution simply 
follow our federally negotiated rates 
which are: organized research 56%, 
other sponsored activities 38%, 
instruction 40%, off-campus 26% and 
IPA 8%?  

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

54.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Question regarding possible research 
project: Impact of cannabis potency 
on health” - [Redacted].  

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

55.  Would this mechanism allow us to 
subcontract work to a non-public 
university entity (e.g., a data collection 
firm)? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

56.  I wanted to confirm that cannabidiol 
(CBD) was included under the 
umbrella term “cannabis products” 

The Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act 
(MAUCRSA), under Business and Professions Code section 26001, 
subdivision (f) defines “cannabis,” as “all parts of the plant Cannabis 
sativa Linnaeus, Cannabis indica, or Cannabis ruderalis, whether 
growing or not; the seeds thereof; the resin, whether crude or purified, 
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before beginning any submission 
steps 

extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, 
salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds, or resin. 
“Cannabis” also means the separated resin, whether crude or purified, 
obtained from cannabis. “Cannabis” does not include the mature stalks of 
the plant, fiber produced from the stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds 
of the plant, any other compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, 
or preparation of the mature stalks (except the resin extracted 
therefrom), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of the plant which is 
incapable of germination. For the purpose of this division, “cannabis” 
does not mean “industrial hemp” as defined by Section 11018.5 of the 
Health and Safety Code.” 

57.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Question related to the Request for 
Proposals (RFP)” – [Redacted]. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

58.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Question to the RFP Public University 
Research Grants” – [Redacted]. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

59.  [Redacted]. Will the new grants 
include a mechanism for paying for 
work and services from researchers 
outside my own institution? Some 
people have fee for service 
arrangements within their institutions 
and are easy to pay, but many 
don’t.  One must pay salaries and 
send money for supplies instead.  This 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget items must be 
included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition related to 
indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe how the 
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normally requires a subcontracting 
arrangement between two 
institutions.    Will we be able to do 
that with your grants? 

grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that will be 
funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities the 
grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

60.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Questions about allowable topic 
areas” – [Redacted].  

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

61.  In the budget form, do we need to 
budget indirect costs? If yes, what is 
the indirect cost rate allowed by BCC? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

62.  Does BCC allow collaborators or 
consultants outside of California 
Public Universities? For example, 
those in private research 
universities/institutions in California, 
those in public or private research 
universities/intuitions outside of 
California but in the US. 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. However, the applicant may 
work with partners on the project. 
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63.  Should we propose a project solely 

focusing on California?  
If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring. Further guidance, on 
research funding can be found in subdivision (b) of the California 
Revenue and Taxation Code, section 34019. 

64.  Please confirm what size margins to 
use for this application; Please advise 
which type of font is allowed or 
preferred; Is there a word limit for the 
proposed titled? Is there a word limit 
for what can be included in the portal 
for this question? “Please provide a 
brief description of the proposed 
research project”. 

The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs. There is no specific 
margin requirement or word limit for the Scope of Proposal. The “Please 
provide a brief description of the proposed research project” has a 
10,000 word  (65,000 characters) limit.  

65.  Do we have to limit to CA or can we 
propose examining differences 
[Redacted] between major 
metropolitan areas [Redacted]? 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring. Further guidance, on 
research funding can be found in subdivision (b) of the California 
Revenue and Taxation Code, section 34019.  

66.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Questions for Bureau of cannabis 
control RFP.” – [Redacted]. 

 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   
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67.  Application format. The proposal 

announcement stated this application 
form needs to be within four pages. 
Does this 4 pages include the 
reference list?  

The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs. Any reference list 
that is submitted as part of the Scope of Proposal would be included in 
the 4 page limit, although one is not required. 

68.  [Redacted]. Since human research, 
especially data collection with human 
subjects, is restricted in this period, I 
am uncertain the time I can collect the 
data at this point. Would this be a 
limitation to receive this grant if this 
project granted?  The proposal 
announcement stated that the Bureau 
may extend the funding period in 
certain instances.  Would this apply to 
my case? 

Applicants selected to receive funding will be notified on November 6, 
2020, at which time the Bureau will start the process to enter into the 
requisite agreement for authorizing payment of grant funds. Grant funds 
will only be distributed after the agreement for grant funds has been 
executed. The time period of when the funds must be used is determined 
starting from the distribution date of the awarded funds. The Bureau 
cannot approve a time line for the proposed project prior to submission 
and scoring. 

69.  Does the budget allow for indirect 
costs? If so, at what rate? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  
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70.  The RFP specifies the need to 

address one research area. Would the 
proposal be rewarded or penalized for 
addressing more than one research 
area? 

The Bureau requires that at least one research area be addressed in a 
proposed project but applicants are not restricted from submitting a 
proposal that includes multiple research areas. 

71.  How should investigators arrange 
community-partnerships that are 
integral for studying cannabis issues 
in the community? Should 
subwards/contractual agreements be 
submitted with the proposal? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

72.  Will proposals be sent out to external 
reviewers in academia? 

Applications will be reviewed by a committee determined by the Bureau.  

73.  Can investigators use infographics in 
the proposal? If so, are there any 
color restrictions for the infographics? 

The applicant may provide any information or materials that they feel is 
appropriate in meeting the requirements for the Scope of Proposal. The 
Scope of Proposal, which includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources, must be no more than 
four typewritten pages, single spaced, black and white print only, and in 
12-point font. 

74.  Are investigators who are in the 
process of obtaining a DEA license 
still eligible to be funded? 

An applicant is eligible for grant funding selection if they are a public 
university in California. The Bureau is unable to provide a determination 
regarding eligibility of the applicant prior to submission and scoring.  

75.  Are there any costs that are not 
allowable? Fees? Out-of-state 
expenses? Biological testing 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
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samples? Purchase of secondary data 
(for triangulation purposes)?  

each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget items must be 
included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition related to 
indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe how the 
grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that will be 
funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities the 
grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

76.  Are there margin limitations (0.5 or 1 
inch)? Do citations count toward the 
page limit?  

There is no specific margin requirement for the Scope of Proposal. 
Citations in the Scope of Proposal are included in the 4 page limit.  

77.  The proposal states that equipment 
and subcontracts are not allowed 
without permission from the Bureau. 
Does this mean that subcontracts 
cannot be proposed in the 
application? 

An applicant can propose anything the applicant chooses in the proposal. 
However, as indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant 
funding selection if they are a public university in California and 
recipients shall not subcontract any portion of the research project 
funding by grant funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure 
any equipment, without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau 
will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated 
in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

78.  Will proposals be awarded based on 
this submission or will the BCC 
request a second round of 
applications based on committee 
recommendations? 

Grant recipients will be notified on November 6, 2020, based on the 
applications submitted by the deadline. There will not be a second round 
of applications.  

79.  What is the allowable portion of 
indirect cost expenditures (overhead) 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
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on proposals submitted under this 
RFP?  

how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

80.  Is the $2 million maximum allowable 
cost per project per institution, or 
simply per project? In other words, 
may a single institution submit more 
than one proposal meeting this 
maximum. 

A public university is the applicant and may only submit one proposal for 
a given research project. Applicants may submit more than one proposal 
if the proposals are for separate and distinct research projects or 
activities. No public university will be awarded a total of more than two 
million dollars for an individual research project for all costs. 

81.  Are there any restrictions to who can 
be a PI on a BCC grant 
application?  Specifically, can non-
ladder-rank faculty at UC and CSU 
institutions apply?  I have PhD 
students who wonder if their 
applications should have a faculty 
member as the PI or if they can 
submit applications themselves as 
PIs. 

An applicant is eligible for grant funding selection if they are a public 
university in California. The RFP does not specify the individual that is 
required to submit the proposal application on behalf of the applicant. 
The individual submitting the application for the applicant must have the 
authority to submit the application on behalf of the applicant, must attest 
to the truth and accuracy of the information provided, and must provide 
reasonable assurance that the funding will be used in accordance with 
the application if selected for funding. The Scope of Proposal must 
include project personnel description. The official signing the contract for 
the grantee must be the official designated by the public university to 
enter into the contract. The Bureau may request documentation 
establishing the person’s authority to enter into the contract on behalf of 
the recipient.  

82.  Are there any 
guidelines/recommendations about 
budget size, or about the allocation of 
funds to particular budget 
components?  

No public university will be awarded a total of more than two million 
dollars for an individual research project for all costs. The Bureau will 
evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in 
the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget items must be 
included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition related to 
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indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe how the 
grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that will be 
funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities the 
grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

83.  I plan to submit a proposal that 
includes a public (UC)/private 
partnership. Are there any restrictions 
or guidelines for subcontracting or 
including independent consulting 
agreements in the grant budget? In 
the case of my team, we would like to 
have industry insight from a 
professional who has valuable 
expertise in the California cannabis 
industry, but does not have an 
appointment at a public California 
university. 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

84.  I would like to know if you have a 
specific format and requirements for 
applying to this grant. 

Please refer to the RFP which indicates there must be an application, 
budget and Scope of Proposal which includes the description, requested 
funding, experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs.  

85.  We would like confirmation regarding 
whether or not indirect costs are 
allowable. Is there a salary cap that 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
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needs to be applied and if yes, what is 
it? 

how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

86.  The RFP instructions reference staff 
resumes.  Please clarify: Are NIH 
formatted biosketches allowable 
instead of resumes or CVs? 

The RFP requires submission of CVs and a biosketch would not meet 
this requirement.  

 

87.  Are biosketches/resumes/CVs needed 
for ALL staff or only key personnel? 

As indicated in the RFP, please include a copy of the curriculum vitae for 
all staff that will be performing research and analytical activities (not 
included in the page limitation). 

88.  Are there any unallowable costs and if 
yes what are they? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

89.  Is there an estimated amount of 
funding that is ear-marked for each of 
the five broad categories identified in 
the request for applications (e.g., 6 
million for each category)? 

There is a total of $30,000,000 in available funding for research that 
meets the criteria in those categories identified in the RFP. The Bureau 
will consider only one proposal per applicant for a given research project, 
and no public university will be awarded more than two million dollars for 
an individual research project. Applicants may submit more than one 
proposal if the proposals are for separate and distinct research projects 
or activities. 
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90.  Is this a cost-based reimbursement or 

milestone-based reimbursement 
contract? 

Recipients will receive a single disbursement of grant funds awarded. 

91.  Should prime recipients just put 
subcontracts as a line item in the 
budget template but provide the same 
level of detail in the budget 
justification as required for the prime? 

All budget items must be included in the proposal and the proposal must 
describe how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all 
items that will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address 
what activities the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. 
This will be evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and 
measurable outcomes of the project. Detailed descriptions as required 
and requested will assist the review and evaluation of the proposal. 

92.  What is the earliest start date for the 
project? 

Applicants selected to receive funding will be notified on November 6, 
2020, at which time the Bureau will start the process to enter into the 
requisite agreement for authorizing payment of grant funds. Grant funds 
will only be distributed after the agreement for grant funds has been 
executed. The time period of when the funds must be used is determined 
starting from the distribution date of the awarded funds. 

93.  I'm trying to get a sense of the budget 
range you are targeting for each 
project, so would appreciate some 
idea of the target and maximum. 

No public university will be awarded a total of more than two million 
dollars for an individual research project for all costs. 

94.  Are full F%A costs associated with a 
university paid with this grant 
mechanism? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
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evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

95.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research 

“Questions regarding public university 
research grants” – [Redacted] 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

96.  Are collaborators across 2 different 
institutions [Redacted] allowed and, if 
so, would the project include 2 
separate budgets or one budget with a 
subcontract? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. Additionally, the applicant 
must describe any partners or collaborators that will be used for the 
project, in the Scope of Proposal. 

97.  Is it preferable for project proposals to 
cover more than one of the questions 
from Section 34109? For example, if a 
project were to look at the "impacts on 
public health, including health costs..." 
and "the impact of treatment for 
maladaptive cannabis use..." 
questions together, would that be 
considered a project strength? 
Similarly, would a proposal on more 
disparate topics (one that looks at 
relationships between licenced 
[sic]cannabis businesses and 
cannabis use rates) be of interest?  Or 
would the bureau prefer to have each 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring. The proposal must 
address at least one of the research areas as indicated in the RFP.    
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proposal only focus on one 
question/topic? 

98.  Are there limitations on how much 
each proposal can subcontract with 
organizations outside of public 
universities (e.g. private universities, 
non-profit research organizations)? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

99.  Are there limits for how many projects 
an individual investigator can lead?  

A public university may be awarded a grant for multiple research projects 
but will not be awarded more than two million dollars for each individual 
research project. 

100.  What is the mechanism for funding? Is 
this a contract or grant?  

A standard State contract (Std. 213) will be provided to applicants that 
are selected for funding. The contract is the agreement between the 
applicant and the Bureau, which authorizes the payment of grant funds.  

101.  Is escalation (e.g., salary increases) 
allowed? 

The use of the grand funding must conform to the applicant’s application 
and budget form for expending grant funds, in accordance with the 
Bureau’s award of funding.  

102.  Faculty at the University, and in grant 
applications, are typically budgeted at 
percent effort, not on an hourly 
wage/hour worked basis. Is it 
acceptable to budget it in this manner 
for the submission (it will still include 
the salary/benefits information)? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
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outcomes of the project. The Bureau does not require that staff 
budgeting be done in any particular format. 

103.  What are the budget dates? Would 
the start date be November 6th? What 
dates should be used for the start and 
end dates (e.g., the State fiscal year 
[Nov-June for the first year, and then 
July-June for the 2nd year; or some 
other time period)? 

Applicants selected to receive funding will be notified on November 6, 
2020, at which time the Bureau will start the process to enter into the 
requisite agreement for authorizing payment of grant funds. Grant funds 
will only be distributed after the agreement for grant funds has been 
executed. The time period of when the funds must be used is determined 
starting from the distribution date of the awarded funds. 

104.  Are multiple-PIs allowed (i.e., we have 
two very distinct areas of expertise for 
one of our proposals)? 

A public university may be awarded a grant for multiple research projects 
but will not be awarded more than two million dollars for each individual 
research project. There is no requirement for only one primary 
investigator. 

105.  Under item #3, regarding the 
University’s past research on law, 
science or public health, is this 
specific to cannabis-related work 
(otherwise they’re very broad-ranging 
categories for a large university [e.g., 
“science”]). 

The applicant may provide any information or material that they feel is 
appropriate in meeting the requirements for the Scope of Proposal and 
supports their project and proposal. 

106.  Does the bibliography, listing the 
references cited in the document, 
count in the 4 pages? This would use 
up valuable space, but without 
providing the full reference it would be 
challenging for the reviewers to locate 
the relevant publications cited in the 
proposal. 

A bibliography and references cited in the Scope of Proposal are 
included in the 4-page limit. 
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107.  Item 2d cites qualifications of the staff, 

including resumes. Is this expected for 
all staff (e.g., research assistants, 
fund managers), or would a detailed 
justification of their project-related 
duties, and a few sentences on their 
experience, suffice? 

As indicated in the RFP, please include a copy of the curriculum vitae for 
all staff that will be performing research and analytical activities (not 
included in the page limitation). 

108.  Who do you want named as the 
“Person Submitting Application“? This 
is usually the official from our Office of 
Contracts and Grants. But I’m not sure 
if you’re expecting the Principal 
Investigator to be named here. 

The RFP does not specify the individual that is required to submit the 
proposal application on behalf of the applicant. The individual submitting 
the application for the applicant must have the authority to submit the 
application on behalf of the applicant, must attest to the truth and 
accuracy of the information provided, and must provide reasonable 
assurance that the funding will be used in accordance with the 
application if selected for funding. The Scope of Proposal must include 
project personnel description. The official signing the contract for the 
grantee must be the official designated by the public university to enter 
into the contract. The Bureau may request documentation establishing 
the person’s authority to enter into the contract on behalf of the recipient.  

109.  How does the email listed under each 
of the “Submit files” headings from the 
email under “Person Submitting 
Application”, or are you expecting 
them to be the same? 

The email should be the email for the person who is submitting the 
application. The RFP does not specify the individual that is required to 
submit the proposal application on behalf of the applicant. The individual 
submitting the application for the applicant must have the authority to 
submit the application on behalf of the applicant, must attest to the truth 
and accuracy of the information provided, and must provide reasonable 
assurance that the funding will be used in accordance with the 
application if selected for funding. The Scope of Proposal must include 
project personnel description. The official signing the contract for the 
grantee must be the official designated by the public university to enter 
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into the contract. The Bureau may request documentation establishing 
the person’s authority to enter into the contract on behalf of the recipient.  

110.  What is the indirect cost rate? If none 
is listed, [Redacted] will attempt to 
charge 59.5%. Typically, state funding 
is 25% IDC. Shall we use the 25% 
rate? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project. 

111.  Can funds be used for visiting faculty 
to work on cannabis research at UC 
(i.e., can we pay a non-California 
faculty member to work on a UC 
Campus summer while they keep their 
other jobs)? Can funds be used for 
travel to present cannabis research 
out of state? Can funds be used to 
pay for publication of research 
materials in peer review journals? Can 
funds be used for equipment - 
computers, water monitoring 
equipment? Can graduate students, 
postdocs, people with joint 
appointments, or visiting scholars 
submit grants, or must the submitting 
person have PI status? Can funds be 
used to buy-out faculty time? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

The RFP does not specify the individual that is required to submit the 
proposal application on behalf of the applicant. The individual submitting 
the application for the applicant must have the authority to submit the 
application on behalf of the applicant, must attest to the truth and 
accuracy of the information provided, and must provide reasonable 
assurance that the funding will be used in accordance with the 
application if selected for funding. The official signing the contract for the 
grantee must be the official designated by the public university to enter 
into the contract. The Bureau may request documentation establishing 
the person’s authority to enter into the contract on behalf of the recipient.  
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112.  Can separate projects work in tandem 

with others? If so, should we explicitly 
mention that in the proposals?  

A public university is the applicant and may only submit one proposal for 
a given research project. Applicants may submit more than one proposal 
if the proposals are for separate and distinct research projects or 
activities. 

113.  Do we have to detail every cannabis 
related project from [Redacted] or only 
the projects the research personnel 
are involved in? Do we need to list all 
current/past projects in law, science, 
public health, too? This could be quite 
long for a large university, and in fact, 
may be impossible to put together 
accurately.  

The RFP requires this listing of cannabis related projects by the public 
university applicant. 

114.  Can we do sub-awards to other 
universities or organizations, both in 
state and out of state? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. 

115.  What aspects of the proposal does the 
4-page limit apply to?  

The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs.  

116.  Should we have a bibliography and 
does this count as part of the page 
count. 

A bibliography is not required and would be included in the Scope of 
Proposal’s 4-page limit. 
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117.  Is there a scoring benefit to linking to 

more than one focal areas? Can the 
“cannabis industry research” area (or 
“economic impacts”) include 
unlicensed farmers? Or is it just 
focused on licensed farmers/actors?  
Is there a prioritization of funding 
within focal areas? 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

118.  Regarding the RFP, can funding from 
this be used for salary support or 
consulting fees for a research 
collaborator at an institution that isn’t a 
California public university? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP.  

The proposal shall include a description of collaborators and partners 
used on the project, and all budget items must be included in the 
proposal. The proposal must describe how the grant funds will be 
expended in detail and include all items that will be funded by the grant 
funds, and specifically address what activities the grants funds will be 
used toward and why it is needed. This will be evaluated in conjunction 
with the feasibility, objective, and measurable outcomes of the project.  

119.  From the RFP: “Applicants may 
submit more than one proposal if the 
proposals are for separate and distinct 
research projects or activities.” Can 
BCC please clarify “activities”? 
Specifically, if a specific dataset held 
by the researchers can be analyzed to 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring. There is no prohibition 
against the same data set being used for more than one project. 
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address more than one of the four 
topic areas (i.e. more than one of the 
questions specified in Revenue and 
Taxation Code section 34019(b)), is it 
allowable for these analyses to be 
included in separate proposals aimed 
at each of those questions?   These 
would be separate and distinct 
research projects focused on 
answering separate questions, and 
the specific analyses would be 
different, so we see them as separate 
activities, but we are worried the [sic] 
“activity” of analyzing the same 
dataset might be viewed as an 
overlapping “activity” and thus 
disqualify the application. Any 
clarification would be greatly 
appreciated. 

120.  Are there guidelines for the minimum 
margins for an application? NIH 
requires at least one-half inch margins 
– top, bottom, left, and right – for all 
pages.  

There is no specific margin requirement for the Scope of Proposal. 

121.  How will the BCC consider large, 
campus-wide proposals (a 
conglomerate of researchers 
organized under one proposal) 

A public university is the applicant and may only submit one proposal for 
a given research project. Applicants may submit more than one proposal 
if the proposals are for separate and distinct research projects or 
activities. 
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compared to individual project-based 
proposals? 

122.  May I submit multiple proposals in the 
same category? 

A public university is the applicant and may only submit one proposal for 
a given research project. Applicants may submit more than one proposal 
if the proposals are for separate and distinct research projects or 
activities. 

123.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Request for Proposals – Clarification” 
– [Redacted]. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   
 

124.  Can I collaborate with someone from 
another state?  

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. The proposal must describe 
all partners and collaborators used for the project. All budget items must 
be included in the proposal. The proposal must describe how the grant 
funds will be expended in detail and include all items that will be funded 
by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities the grants 
funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be evaluated in 
conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable outcomes of 
the project.  

125.  Would the “public health research” 
category include proposals using 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   
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animal models to study the impact of 
cannabis/cannabinoids on diseases? 

 

126.  Are preclinical research projects using 
animal models suitable/competitive for 
the RFA under the public health 
research category? [Redacted]. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.  

 

127.  Regarding area "2. Requested 
Funding, second bullet point - if you 
do not receive full amount of grant 
funds..." Is this question for the 
reviewers to understand the minimum 
cost to address the issue proposed in 
the research and then determine what 
is nice to have? In the funding 
description section, should we present 
the proposed items to be funded in a 
prioritized list so the reviewers know 
the level of importance to achieve the 
proposed research's objectives?  

The RFP indicates that the Bureau will prorate funds as necessary; 
therefore, the Bureau has requested information about the course of 
action the applicant will take if the amount of funding the Bureau can 
provide is less that what has been requested. The Bureau will use this 
information in making award determinations. The applicant may indicate 
priority levels for funding, although this is not required. 

128.  Regarding area "3. Experience and 
Project Personnel, second bullet point 
- describe current and past research 
projects conducted by your 
university..." How exhaustive of a 
descriptive list do the reviewers 
require for all current and past 
research projects at the university in 
emerging areas of law, science or 

The applicant may provide any information or material that they feel is 
appropriate in meeting the requirements for the Scope of Proposal, and 
supports their project and proposal. 
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public health? What emerging areas 
are most significant to include and 
what level of detail are the reviewers 
looking for in this section? 

129.  Is there a preferred format for 
personnel CVs? 

The RFP does not require a specific CV format.  

130.  Does the Scope of the Proposal’s 4-
page limit include all of the following: 
1) Description of proposed research 
project; 2) Requested funding; 3) 
Experience and project personnel; 
and 4) Resources. 

The Scope of Proposal includes the description, requested funding, 
experience and project personnel, and resources. All of these 
components must be no more than four typewritten pages, single 
spaced, in 12-point font. CVs of project staff are not included in this page 
count and there are no page number limits for CVs.  

131.  The section on “Experience and 
Project Personnel” asks for a 
description of “all cannabis related 
research projects” and “current and 
past research projects” conducted by 
your university – is this meant to 
describe just the investigative team’s 
research, or the university as a 
whole? 

The applicant may provide any information or materials that they feel is 
appropriate in meeting the requirements for the Scope of Proposal and 
supports their project and proposal. 

132.  I am applying to the above-mentioned 
RFP and noticed the upcoming 
deadline for a “Written Question” on 
Thursday 24th of September.  Would 
you be able to provide me with a bit 
more detail on the length, format and 

This deadline has passed. Questions related to the RFP were to be 
submitted to the Bureau by the date and time indicated in the RFP. 
Please refer to the RFP for additional guidance. 
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scope of this written question 
document? 

133.  Is there a percent for indirect that 
should be accounted for? Also, can 
faculty personnel be a line item 
(budgeted) for the time effort? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project. 

134.  Please let me know if references are 
included in the 4-page proposal. 

References cited in the Scope of Proposal are included in the 4 page 
limit. 

135.  Please also advise if any experimental 
human research studies are within the 
scope of the RFP (including, but not 
limited to, federally compliant drug 
administration studies).  

 

The RFP specifies that the applicant shall indicate if cannabis will be 
used in the research project, and if so, to explain how the cannabis will 
be obtained. 

136.  We understand that subcontractors 
are not allowed, but can we include 
knowledge experts as “independent 
contractors” to help address the 
research questions? 

As indicated in the RFP, an applicant is eligible for grant funding 
selection if they are a public university in California and recipients shall 
not subcontract any portion of the research project funding by grant 
funds awarded by the Bureau, nor shall they procure any equipment, 
without prior written consent of the Bureau. The Bureau will evaluate 
each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as delineated in the 
Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. The proposal must describe 
all partners and collaborators used for the project. All budget items must 
be included in the proposal. The proposal must describe how the grant 



Bureau Responses to Questions on Public University Research Grant RFP   Page 38 of 43 

 Questions Answers 
funds will be expended in detail and include all items that will be funded 
by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities the grants 
funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be evaluated in 
conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable outcomes of 
the project.  

137.  What is the earliest/latest date allowed 
to start the project? I would like to 
start the project either July 1 2021 or 
January 1 2022. Is this do-able? 

Applicants selected to receive funding will be notified on November 6, 
2020, at which time the Bureau will start the process to enter into the 
requisite agreement for authorizing payment of grant funds. Grant funds 
will only be distributed after the agreement for grant funds has been 
executed. The time period of when the funds must be used is determined 
starting from the distribution date of the awarded funds. 

138.  Are there any restrictions on indirect 
costs? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

139.  To address the following RFP 
requirements, can we save space in 
the proposals by inserting links to 
webpages that provide the requested 
information? [Describe all cannabis 
related research projects conducted 
by your university. Describe current 
and past research projects conducted 

The applicant may provide any information or material that they feel is 
appropriate in meeting the requirements for the Scope of Proposal, within 
the limitations proscribed in the RFP. All of the information required in the 
Scope of Proposal must be included in the 4-page limit, with the 
exception of CVs.  
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by your university in emerging areas 
of law, science, or public health.] 

140.  We see that the 4-page limit excludes 
CVs but should any pertinent 
references remain within the 4 page 
limit? 

References cited in the Scope of Proposal are included in the 4 page 
limit. 

141.  When is the expected start date for 
projects that are selected? 

Applicants selected to receive funding will be notified on November 6, 
2020, at which time the Bureau will start the process to enter into the 
requisite agreement for authorizing payment of grant funds. Grant funds 
will only be distributed after the agreement for grant funds has been 
executed. The time period of when the funds must be used is determined 
starting from the distribution date of the awarded funds. 

142.  Are indirect costs allowed for the 
budget? 

The Bureau will evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis, and as 
delineated in the Evaluation and Scoring portion of the RFP. All budget 
items must be included in the proposal and there is no strict prohibition 
related to indirect costs or required cost rate. The proposal must describe 
how the grant funds will be expended in detail and include all items that 
will be funded by the grant funds, and specifically address what activities 
the grants funds will be used toward and why it is needed. This will be 
evaluated in conjunction with the feasibility, objective, and measurable 
outcomes of the project.  

143.  The RFP says applicants should plan 
for a 2-year project, but then says, “in 
certain instances the Bureau may 
extend the time in which to use the 
grant funds”. Does this mean you are 
considering no cost extensions or that 
an applicant can submit a proposal 

Recipients selected for funding must utilize funds within two years from 
date of distribution of the awarded funds, unless otherwise authorized by 
the Bureau. The Bureau may approve a research project to exceed 2 
years. 
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with an intended length longer than 2 
years? 

144.  If we needed a small amount of 
cannabis to use in assays, what would 
the process be? Is the process 
different because it’s state funding 
and not federal funding? 

The RFP specifies that the applicant shall indicate if cannabis will be 
used in the research project, and if so, to explain how the cannabis will 
be obtained. 

145.  Can you provide any additional 
information on the selection of the 
committee to review proposals, or 
their review process?  

Applications will be reviewed by a committee determined by the Bureau.  

146.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“[Redacted] Questions re: the BCC 
Public University Research Grants 
RFP”. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.  

147.  Section 34019(b) of Proposition 64 
states "The research funded pursuant 
to this subdivision shall include but not 
necessarily be limited to" 11 
categories of research. The language 
in this RFP, however, is more limited: 
"All proposals must propose research 
that addresses at least one of the 
following areas." Will proposals that 
fall outside the more strict language of 
the RFP be considered?  

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   
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148.  (Question Relating to Possible 

Area/Topic of Research) 

“[Redacted] Questions re: the BCC 
Public University Research Grants 
RFP”. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.  

149.  Will research on hemp be considered 
for this RFP? 

The Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act 
(MAUCRSA), under Business and Professions Code section 26001, 
subdivision (f) defines “cannabis,” as “all parts of the plant Cannabis 
sativa Linnaeus, Cannabis indica, or Cannabis ruderalis, whether 
growing or not; the seeds thereof; the resin, whether crude or purified, 
extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, 
salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds, or resin. 
“Cannabis” also means the separated resin, whether crude or purified, 
obtained from cannabis. “Cannabis” does not include the mature stalks of 
the plant, fiber produced from the stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds 
of the plant, any other compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, 
or preparation of the mature stalks (except the resin extracted 
therefrom), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of the plant which is 
incapable of germination. For the purpose of this division, “cannabis” 
does not mean “industrial hemp” as defined by Section 11018.5 of the 
Health and Safety Code.” 

150.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“[Redacted] Questions re: the BCC 
Public University Research Grants 
RFP”. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   
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151.  (Question Relating to Possible 

Area/Topic of Research) 

“[Redacted] Questions re: the BCC 
Public University Research Grants 
RFP”. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

152.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“[Redacted] Questions re: the BCC 
Public University Research Grants 
RFP”. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   

153.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“[Redacted] Questions re: the BCC 
Public University Research Grants 
RFP”. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.  

154.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“[Redacted] Questions re: the BCC 
Public University Research Grants 
RFP”. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.  

155.  What is annual funding cap, overhead 
rate, number of years of funding, the 
possibility of renewal?  

There is a total of $30,000,000 in available funding for research that 
meets the criteria in those categories identified in the RFP. Applicants 
will not be awarded more than two million dollars for any specific 
proposal. The Bureau will consider only one proposal per applicant for a 
given research project. Applicants may submit more than one proposal if 
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the proposals are for separate and distinct research projects or activities. 
Recipients selected for funding through this RFP must utilize funds within 
two years from date of distribution of the awarded funds, unless 
otherwise authorized by the Bureau.  

156.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“We are studying the effects of 
cannabinoids of [Redacted].” – 
[Redacted] 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.  

157.  (Question Relating to Possible 
Area/Topic of Research) 

“Written Questions for BBC Request 
for Proposals - Public University 
Research Grants” – [Redacted]. 

If the applicant believes this is responsive to an area of research as 
identified in the RFP, the applicant may submit a proposal. The Bureau is 
unable to provide a determination regarding the subject matter of the 
proposed project prior to submission and scoring.   
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